
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 SUSSEX COUNTY AGRICULTURE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
 
 MINUTES 
 
 SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 
 
 

The meeting opened at 7:35 p.m. by Chair Brodhecker in the Freeholder Meeting 
Room at the Sussex County Administrative Center, One Spring Street, Newton, New 
Jersey.  The meeting was held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act, 
N.J.S.A. 10:4-1 of 1975, as amended.  Notice has been forwarded to the newspapers 
and posted on the bulletin board maintained at the Sussex County Administrative 
Center for public announcement. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
 MEMBERS PRESENT: Jane Brodhecker, Chair  
    Brian Hautau 
    Jim Hunt 
    Cece Pattison 
    Joan Snook Smith 
    Peter Southway 
 
 EXCUSED MEMBERS: Lori Day, Vice Chair 
         
 STAFF PRESENT:  Autumn Sylvester, Program Manager 
    Rudy Dragan, Planning Aide 

Antoinette Wasiewicz, Recording Secretary 
 
 ALSO PRESENT:  Tom VanWingerden, Frankford Township 
    Mary VanWingerden, Frankford Township 
    Leslie Roenig, Andover Borough 
    Dan Lacz, Andover Borough 
    Ben Spinelli, Chester 
    Frank Pinto, Chester 
     
 
 
 
 



MINUTES                                           Page 

9/21/15 
 

 

2 

MINUTES CORRECTION/APPROVAL: 
 
A motion was made by Cece Pattison to accept the Minutes of July 20, 2015 as 
presented. The motion was seconded by Jim Hunt. All were in favor, with abstentions 
from Brian Hautau and Joan Snook Smith. Motion carried. 
 
The Agenda was amended to New Business, A. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 
A. ARTICLES OF INTEREST; 
 
Autumn Sylvester provided the Board with articles relating to Junior Zookeeper Day; 
NJ Agriculture Education; Keeping the Garden in Garden State; Which County in NJ 
has the most preserved farmland?; News from the NJDA; Hard Cider production in New 
Jersey; Sunflower selfies; and Right to Farm Protection for Commercial Beekeepers.  
 
B. SADC UPDATE: 
 
Stefanie Miller provided updates on the County Incentive Grants. Sussex County has 
seven Farmland Preservation applications with Final approval. The SADC is in the 
process of reviewing the Mulvaney farm for Green Light Approval. The County has 
encumbered or expended $2,272.215 of its base grant, leaving a balance of $234,083 of 
the total $2.5 million allocated. There is a balance of approximately $7.5 million in the 
competitive fund for the County PIG. Sussex County remains eligible for $5 million in 
Competitive Funds. 
 
Regarding Municipal Planning Incentive Grants, in Frankford Township, the Sussex 
Farm and Horse Show Association is waiting for Final Approval and the Eisele Farm is 
waiting for appraisals. In Green Township, the Carretta Farm is waiting for 
certification. Autumn reported that an Open Space Committee member from Green 
Township advised her that the Carretta’s are withdrawing their application. However, 
she has not received any official notification.  
 
There are no SADC Direct Easement Purchase applications in Sussex County.  
 
Farmland Preservation Funding Reprogramming remains under review. Staff expects to 
discuss this issue with the SADC at a future meeting. 
 
The SADC approved a Resolution at its August 27th meeting related to special occasion 
events at wineries on preserved farmland. 
 
Autumn reported she and Ms. Miller met with County Counsel to get him up to speed 
on the Farmland Preservation Program and process.  
 



MINUTES                                           Page 

9/21/15 
 

 

3 

C. SOIL DISTURBANCE INVITATION: 
 
An e-mail was received from Jeffrey Everett, SADC, advising that the SADC has been 
reviewing the issue of soil disturbance on preserved farms. They have been discussing 
this issue with various agricultural interests and would also like input from the 
CADBs. Mr. Everett asked that Autumn let him know if she wants the SADC staff to 
attend a future CADB meeting. All of the Board members said they would like to meet 
with the SADC.  
 
D. SPECIAL OCCASION EVENTS AT WINERIES: 
 
At its August 27, 2015 meeting, the SADC approved a Resolution that augments its 
existing pilot program for wineries conducting special occasion events on preserved 
farmland. Landowners who plan to conduct special occasion events under the pilot 
program need to annually register with the SADC to provide information on the general 
description of the winery and location and the types and frequency of special events. 
They are also required to sign a certificate of compliance acknowledging that they 
understand their responsibilities under the law. A copy of the Resolution was received. 
 
E. CADB TO SADC LETTER RE: REAPPOINTMENT OF FUNDS: 
 
A letter was sent to the SADC from the CADB Administrators of Mercer, Monmouth, 
Morris, Passaic, Somerset, Sussex, Cape May, Ocean and Bergen Counties regarding 
the reapportionment of unused base grant funding be shared with all CADB 
administrators and other effected organizations before the Committee takes formal 
action.  
 
F.  POLICY FOR UPDATING CERTIFIED MARKET VALUES; 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish a timeframe after which a Certified Market 
Value approved by the SADC must be updated for County Planning Incentive Grant, 
Municipal PIG and Non Profit applications for pre-acquired easements that could not 
receive SADC Final Approvals and cost share grant commitments due to SADC funding 
shortfalls. The SADC requested that CADBs review this policy and provide comments if 
necessary. 
 
AG. AGENT’S REPORT: 
 
Steve Komar did not attend this evening’s meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES                                           Page 

9/21/15 
 

 

4 

OLD BUSINESS: 
 
A. FARMLAND PRESERVATION PROGRAM: 
 
Sella – Autumn reported that she is working on the closing documents. She received 
the revised surveys from Mr. Paul and they have been sent to the SADC. Autumn said 
she is waiting to hear from them regarding the right of first refusal.  
 
FY 2013 Application Updates – Autumn reported that Purchasing received 12 
responses to the Farmland Survey RFP. Six responses did not submit required 
documentation and were rejected. The Freeholders will designate a qualified Surveyors 
List and award contracts at the next meeting. 
 
The Department of Engineering submitted their recommendation based on total cost. 
Delaware Valley Associates will survey Duddy and Gianattasio for $11,750 and Dykstra 
Associates, PC will survey Libby and Paladino at a cost of $21, 670 for a total of 
$33,420. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
A. PRESERVATION APPLICATIONS: 
 
5 Moo Farm, LLC – Frank Pinto, a Consultant representing Daniel Lacz said they are 
here this evening for the Board to consider preserving 5 Moo Farm, LLC. This is a 20-
acre remnant of the old Lackawanna Dairy Farm in Andover. Mr. Lacz has a business 
plan to bring the farm into agricultural viability that is more in line with the 21st 
century direct marking agriculture. He would like to invest in bringing the barns back 
to their original condition and repurpose them for his agricultural operations. He is 
also contemplating a multi-faceted agricultural production business that involves the 
production of meat and crops on-site and the direct marketing of his product. This is a 
unique location for that to be a viable, long-term operation because of its proximity to 
the Borough. Usually, agricultural operations are where the large parcels of land are 
located. In this location, he has a real opportunity to market to the tourist trade and 
local people who live in Andover and Byram. This farm has a real potential to be a 
good, solid farm for the long term and to be an asset to the regional agricultural 
economy as a whole in Sussex County because it is located at the gateway coming into 
the County from the south. 
 
Daniel Lacz said about five or six years ago, he bought a preserved Christmas Tree 
farm in Warren. His brother is the farm manager for this farm. This started off as a 
hobby in his house and kept growing and growing. The Andover property is zoned for 
nine homes. Mr. Lacz decided to take on the project of preserving the structures and 
historical nature of the buildings.  
 



MINUTES                                           Page 

9/21/15 
 

 

5 

Leslie Roerig said she is a third-generation farmer and that her family used to own a 
lot of land in Hunterdon County. Due to the high taxes in that area, they had to sell off 
a large portion of the property. She said she grew up farming sweet corn, pigs and 
cows. She has been in 4H and has worked as a wrangler on ranches out west, South 
Carolina and North Carolina. When she first saw this farm, she told Mr. Spinelli that 
the farm has a lot of potential but that it will take some hard work. She said she lives 
on the farm and spends every day there.  
 
Autumn advised the Board that the property is located in Andover Borough, which is 
outside of the County’s Agriculture Development Area (ADA.) The Board will need to 
revise the ADA and submit it with either the 2017 PIG Grant Application or, at a later 
date, it will need to be approved by the SADC.  
 
Mr. Lacz said he took title at the end of January and that he has already invested a lot 
of money into the farm. After nine months, the farm is completely fenced and the 
house is habitable again.  
 
Cece Pattison asked how much land is across the road from the house. Mr. Lacz said 
there are 6.5 acres on the south side. Ms. Roerig said there are two barns which had 
been a milking parlor and a hay-drying barn and equipment barn, two shops, a horse 
barn and a house. The remainder of the property is on the north side. Mr. Hunt asked 
if they were looking for an exception area. Mr. Hunt confirmed that most of the tillable 
acreage is on the side with the house. Ms. Roerig said there is a portion on the house 
side and a lower portion on the south side. Currently, Tranquility Farms has this in 
corn but they plan to put in vegetables there as well. 
 
Mr. Hunt confirmed that the location has two-acre zoning. He asked if there was an 
allowed subdivision for nine homes. Mr. Lacz said “No,” and that was intentional. He 
has no intentions of developing it. Mr. Hunt said he is skeptical about preserving small 
parcels of property but he does appreciate what Mr. Lacz is trying to do. Mr. Lacz said 
from a viability standpoint, to develop those two parcels, you can put in nine homes. 
He spoke with an Engineer and also the group that was on the property. Autumn 
asked if the site plan approval for the surrounding property’s preservation covered his 
area. Mr. Lacz said it did. Autumn said technically there is an approved site plan for 
the property, permitting higher density. Mr. Lacz said the south side had a 100 or 110 
apartments planned for the area where the two large dairy barns are located. On the 
north side, they had about 40+ homes planned. Cece said the property has the 
advantage of being very close to preserved land on the other part of Brighton Road. Mr. 
Pinto said the property is surrounded by land purchased by the DEP. He added that 
the median size of a farm in New Jersey is about 27 acres. This property is below the 
median, but given all the characteristics, it is very appealing and very viable. Joan 
Snook Smith congratulated them on their hard work and said she hopes they do very 
well.  
 



MINUTES                                           Page 

9/21/15 
 

 

6 

Jane Brodhecker asked Autumn what was the next Step. Autumn said the Board can 
do a site visit and if the Board agrees, they can amend the ADA. Ms. Brodhecker 
thanked the applicants for coming in. 
 
Tom and Mary VanWingerden – Autumn said she received Tom and Mary 
VanWingerden’s application in July. She visited the farm in August and took some 
pictures. She said the property is 81.55 acres and is located in Frankford and partially 
in Hampton. Rudy made a woodlands and wetlands map and also a soil map.  
 
Mr. Van Wingerden said the field that Autumn took photographs of has been cleared 
out. Mary VanWingerden said they previously applied for Farmland Preservation in 
2008 and 2010. There were a lot of Farmland Preservation applications that year and 
they were not selected. Ms. VanWingerden said the land was primarily wooded but 
since that visit, they have cleared about 25 acres of trees and made pasture.  
 
Mr. Hunt asked is the main function of the property currently. Ms. VanWingerden said 
currently they are in woodland management. They did have cows but sold them off a 
few years ago due to the economy. They also had some Christmas Trees. The Fair 
would use the trees for the greenery. There are 28 tillable acres. Joan asked what their 
long-term plan for the property was. Mr. VanWingerden said he plan to get meat goats. 
When asked, Mr. VanWingerden said he has not taken hay off the fields. He also has a 
farmer who may grow some sweet corn and pumpkins on his land.  
 
When asked how much road frontage the property has, Mr. VanWingerden said there 
was not a lot of road frontage but that the road dead ends at his driveway. He said he 
also owns a lot in Clearview Lake which is part of this property and it has frontage on 
that side. He also said there is another road leading off his property on the other side. 
Ms. VanWingerden said there also another road leading off this property next to the 
Rutgers Cooperative Center.  
 
Jane asked if they have a Woodland Management Plan. Ms. VanWingerden said that 
Judson Bennet prepared a Woodland Management Plan. Mr. Bennet passed away but 
his son took over the business. Jane asked what type of information is in the Plan. Mr. 
VanWingerden said the Plan recommends which trees to take down. He added that 
they did have a lot of trees damaged by Gypsy Moths and that there are still a lot of 
dead trees to take down. There are also ash trees that are dying and need to be 
removed and trees damaged by the hurricane. Jane asked if there are any trees that 
are at the harvesting state. Mr. VanWingerden said there were none. He added that 
they had a select cut about five or six years. He also said he planted about a half-acre 
of Christmas trees but they did not survive.     
 
Autumn asked if the Board will visit the farm. The Board discussed dates to conduct 
the farm visits. They agreed on November 5th or 6th.  
 



MINUTES                                           Page 

9/21/15 
 

 

7 

Vernon Valley Farm – Autumn said this application is for a 72-acre parcel which is 
across the street from the homestead. He has a five-acre severable exception area. 
Autumn said she did advise him that if that were ever to be subdivided, there would be 
no housing opportunity on the lot remaining. She asked him to give this some thought. 
The property is in the Highlands Planning Area and he may have to go by the 
Highlands Appraisal Value. This farm will also be visited in November.        
 
B. FARMLAND PRESERVATION & OPEN SPACE TRUST FUND FAQ SHEET: 
 
The Open Space Committee requested that this FAQ Sheet be prepared in anticipation 
of the November Ballot Referendum question. The FAQ Sheet is a bare-bones guide to 
how the Trust Fund works, what can and cannot be preserved, the rate and how it is 
determined and the history of the fund. This FAQ Sheet is on both the Ag. 
Development Board’s website and the Open Space Committee’s website.  
 
C.  COMMERCIAL FARM CERTIFICATION – CICERALE: 
 
Autumn said she received a call from Mr. Cicerale regarding a Notice of Violation he 
received advising him that his property is located in an R-4 Zone, which does not 
permit the keeping of farm animals. Mr. Cicerale has owned this property for a long 
time and has always kept animals there. If he is certified as a Commercial Farm, he 
will attend the next CADB meeting regarding this Violation Notice. 
 
Autumn said she reached out to the Hardyston Township Zoning Office on Thursday 
and had to leave a message for him. She wanted to ask him when the new Zoning 
Ordinance was adopted. Mr. Cicerale provided her with Farmland Assessment forms 
dating back to 1997 and tax records which show the farm had a Q Farm qualifier from 
1997. The farm has about 30 acres. Autumn said the Zoning regulations were 
amended in 2011. When asked, Autumn said Mr. Cicerale has goats and chickens. He 
also has hay.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
None 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
All business having been completed, a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Jim 
Hunt. The motion was seconded by Brian Hautau and carried unanimously. The 
meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 


